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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Board of Directofs present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report
of the Charitable Company for the year ended 31st August 2023. The annual repon serves the purpose of -
both a Directors’ report, and a Directors’ report under company law.

The Multi Academy Company (MAC) operates first, primary, middle, and secondary academies for pupils
aged 4 to 18 in Warwickshire and Worcestershire. It has a pupil capacity of 6,474 and had a roll of 5,182 in
the school census in October 2023. o : . :

The charitable company passed a special resolution on 28 May 2021 changing its name from Our Lady of
Lourdes Multi-Academy Company to Our Lady of The Magnificat Multi-Academy Company. Holy Family
Catholic Multi Academy Company merged into the Company on 15t September 2021. On 1%t September 2022
5 additional schools from the Local Authority were transferred into the Multi Academy Company.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution’

The Multi Academy Company was mcorporated on 30th May 2014, is a company limited by guarantee and an
.exempt charity. The Charitable Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary
governing documents of the Academy Company. The Directors of Our Lady of Magnificat are also the
Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company operates as
Our Lady of The Magnificat Multi Academy Company.

- In a Catholic Multi Academy Company the Trustees are known as Directors. Details of the Directors who
served throughout the year ending 31st August 2023, and to the date the accounts are approved are included
in the Reference and Administration Details.

Directors’ Liability
Each Director of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event

of it being wound up while he/she is a Director, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a Director, such -
amount as may be requured not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to
be a Dlrector : .

Directors' Indemnities

. The Multi Academy Company has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement
(RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects -
Directors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Multi -
Academy Company business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the
Directors’ and officers’ indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership." -

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Directors

The management of the Multi Academy Company is the responsibility of the Directors who are elected and
co-opted under the terms of the Multi Academy Company deed. Any persons may be appomted by the
Archbishop. The Members may appoint such additional Directors as it thinks fit and may remove any such
additional Directors appointed by it. If the Members ceases to exist and is not replaced by a successor
institution or becomes insolvent or makes any arrangement or composition with its creditors generally its right
to appoint Directors under the Articles shall vest in the Diocesan Archbishop. )

Those wishing to become Directors must complete an Academy Foundation Director Appllcat|on form and
" submit to the Archdiocese for the approval of the Archbishop. Any new Directors must complete the Deed of
Adherence to the Scheme of Delegatlon and an undertaking to the Archbishop. ‘

The Board of Directors structure: There must always be a least 3 Foundation Directors in post. In addition to
the Full Board there were four subcommittees in the 22/23 academic year: Risk and Audit, Finance and
Resources, Catholic Mission, Performance and Standards, and Remuneration. Directors were members of
these subcommittees providing assurance, setting strateglc direction and monitoring both academlc and
fi nanmal performance. . , -
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Policies and Procedures adopted for the Induction and Training of Directors
All Directors are provided with several documents to read and familiarise themselves with upon appointment.

- These documents- include the Articles of Association, Funding Agreement, Deed of Adherence, Code of
Practice as set by the Archdiocese of Birmingham, Archdiocese Scheme of Delegation, Our Lady of the
Magnificat guide to the role and responsibilities of Directors, and the Academy Trust Handbook. Directors are
encouraged to undertake -additional bespoke training as provided or signposted to them by the Multi Academy
Company throughout the academic year. All Directors undertake on appointment, training on Director roles
and responsibilities provided by the .Diocesan Education Service in the Archdiocese of Birmingham.
Additional bespoke induction, .training and support is provided as required by the Muilti Academy Company’s
Governance Professmnal

Organisational Structure '
The Board of Directors are responS|bIe for the overall strategic direction of the Our Lady of The Magmf icat
.Multi Academy Company. The Directors have a duty to act in the fulfilment of the Company's objectives.

The Directors are respon3|b|e for setting general poI|C|es across the Multi Academy Company, adopting an
annual Academy Business Plan and budget, monitoring the Multi Academy Company use of budgets and

_making strategic decisions about the direction of the Multi Academy Company, capital expendlture and
certain staff appointments.

The Board of Directors delegate responS|b|I|ty for Leadership and. Management to the Executlve Leadership
. Team of the Multi Academy and Academy Local Governing Bodies. In turn the management of the individual
schools is delegated to the Principal/Head teacher and Senior Leadership Team within the individual schools.
The Senior Leadership Team are responsible at an executive level for implementing the policies laid down by
Directors and reporting back to them through the various committees. The Catholic Senior Executive Leader
(CSEL) is the Accounting Officer and is responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets.
Spending control is devolved to designated budget holders within a hierarchy of limits and in accordance with
the approved Financial Regulatlons and Financial Scheme of Delegation.

Arrangements for settlng pay and remuneration of key management personnel

_The executive leadership team of the Our Lady Of The Magnificat Multi Academy Company are appointed
and managed in accordance with the relevant professnonal standards: Teachers standards and ISBL -
professwnal standards. :

Pay and remuneration are set in accordance with the Our Lady Of The Magnificat pay. scale as agreed with
the various Trade Unions. All personnel receive annual reviews where objectives are set to drive the Our
Lady Of The Magnificat Multi Academy Company Business plan. The Our Lady of The Magnificat Multi
Academy Company has a pay policy which states the expectatlons of personnel in reference to pay .
increases. :
The Board of Directors operates a Remuneration Committee which meets twice a year. The Committee
" reviews and sets Executive Pay in accordance with the Multi Academy Company pay scale and policy,
utilising external providers to benchmark pay for the Executive Team including the CSEL. .

Trade union facility 'time

_Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant unlon Full-time equivalent employee number
officials dunng the relevant period :

One
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

-DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time

Number of employees_

0%

1%-50%

7

51%-99%

100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Provide the total cost of facility time

932

Provide the total pay bill

20,951,837

Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent
on facility time, calculated as:
(total cost of facility time / total pay bill) x 100

Less than 1%

Achievements and Performance
Key Performance Indicators

Natvio'nal .

MAC Primary Outcomes ' - 2019 | "0 te | 2022 '\'(azt(;‘z’;;" 2023
Early Years .
% Achieving a good level of development | .69 72 I 72 | 65 70
Year 1 Phonics 4
% Achieving the expected standard in phonics | 85 82 [ 81 | 75 77
End of Key Stage1 o
.% Achieving expected standard or higher in
reading : 78 75 76 67 74
% Achieving greater depth in reading 25 25 23 18 27
% Achieving expected standard or higher in o
writing 63 69 66 58 . 66
" % Achieving greater depth in wrltmg 15 15 16 8 12
% Achieving expected standard or higher in : '
maths ‘ 69 76 76 68 76
% Achieving greater depth in maths 17 22 19 15 23
End of Key Stage 2 . -
% Achlevmg expected standard or higher in .
reading ' 84 73 . 88 75 79
% Achieving a higher standard in reading 32 27 39 28 26
% Achieving expected standard or higher in '
writing » 85 78 80 69 79
% Achieving a higher standard in writing 16 20 19 13 16
% Achiéving expected standard or higher in
maths 85 79 - 86" 71 82 -
% Achieving a higher standard in maths 26 27 23 22 22

\
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) o
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 ' '

| MAC Secondary Outcomes 2019 N(azt(;‘l’;;" 2022 '\'(azg‘z’;)a' 2023
Key Stage 4 : o _ ‘ / 3
Progress 8 : o : | 069 -0.03 .| 035| -0.03
Attainment 8 - 51.6 - 46.7 50.8 48.8 47.5
English A8 - 10.8' 9.9 10.9 10.4 10.2
Maths A8 . : | 9.9 9.1 9.5 " 9.4 9.3
Ebacc A8 - 14.6 13.5 149 | 142 13.7 .
Open A8 ' 16.4 14.2 15.5 14.7 14.3
%.Achieving grades 4+ in RE : A 75.2 71.0 79.5 70.1 70.6
% Achieving grades 4+ in English & maths -73.0 | 64.6. 72.9 68.8 68.2
% Achieving grades 5+ in English & maths | 509 43.0 | 55.8 49.8 44.6
Key Stage 5 N . ' '
APS per A Level Entry . 349 34.01 36.9 38.9 27.4
Average GradeAper A Level Entry 4 C+ .C+ | B- B C-
APS per Applied General Entry . 32.0 28.9 35.6 320 . 331
Average Grade per Applied General Entry Dist- Merit+ Dist Dist- Dist-
Best 3 A Levels Average Points T 38.2 340 410 | 39.2 29.2

External Examination results

We acknowledge that these were the’ second externally assessed results for students since the COVID
pandemic. The national context for these results is that many of the National Exam: Boards reviewed the
- grade boundaries at both KS4 and KS5 to address perceived ‘grade inflation’. ,Overall, our Primary schools
performed extremely well, achieving attainment results ‘which placed the maJorlty significantly above the
National Average in all headlme figures. ,
Three Primary schools returned expected progress results below the National Average two of WhICh jomed
the Multi Academy Company in September 2022.

At Key Stage 4 two of our Secondary. schools achieved progress. results significantly above the National
_Average achieving progress 8 scores of +0.64 & +0.12 respectively. At the time of writing, this places both
'schools within the top 5 within the Archdiocese of Birmingham and within the top 5% of schools nationally.
This is a significant achievement and one that strengthens our ambition to become the hlghest performlng
Catholic Multi Academy Company in the country

During this academic year our schools have been subject to nine external inspections under the
Education Act. The outcomes have been one ‘Outstanding’, seven ‘Good’ judgements and one ‘Inadequate’
(no RI judgements have been passed). Trinity Catholic School received an‘Inadequate’ judgement in January
2023 with three out of the four areas graded as ‘Requires Improvement. Since then, the Multi Academy
Company has received a termination warning notice from the Department for Education for Trinity. We have
returned a substantial improvement plan to the Department for Education who have confirmed the school will
continue to be monitored and will not be re-brokered to another Multi Academy Trust. .

The Ofsted report noted, “The Multi’Academy Company (MAC) leaders provide the scheot with exceptional

support. This is helping to improve some of the weaknesses quickly”. This is a reflection and external "

validation of the work completed at a MAC level to strengthen the core vision and values of our schools as
Cathollc schools within the Archdlocese of Birmingham.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
None of the Directors has been paid remuneratlon or has received other benefits from employment with the -
Multi Academy Company ; :

Transactions were undertaken with the Archdiocese of Blrmlngham - Diocesan Education Servnce who -

'appomt the Foundatlon Directors of the Board to the value of £266,385.

£28, 785 was spent on support services from. other schools within the Diocese of Birmingham and Our Lady of
the Magnificat Multi Academy Company also sold services to other schools within the Diocese of Blrmlngham ,
to- the value of £13,500. This i is analysed below: :

Name of related Services Services Nature of services Balance
party “purchased | sold ' : ‘as at
: ‘ - » - 31.8.23" .
Birmingham The annual charge contributes to the
Diocese 65,185 201,200 costs of those aspects of the DES 600
- - . | work in Catholic education that can
only be provided by the Diocese.
The income was a contribution
" towards a building project. £200K

plus the purchase of staff for CSI

inspections. ‘ .
St Marys Catholic 12,000 Staff services 4,000
Primary School, . '
Southam .
St Patricks Catholuc 120 Shared services
Primary School
Bishop Challoner 1,170 1,500 ~ | Curriculum & student teacher
Catholic College : support - '
St Joseph's Catholic 400 Shared sport activities
Primary School . Bk
St John Wall School 27,615 : Staff services/reviews ,
Total 94,490 214,700 4,600

All services ha_ve been recharged at cost. -

J Fletcher, spouse of a Director, is employed by the Multi Academy Company. The appointment was made in-
open competition and the related Director was not involved in the decision-making process regarding the
appointment which involved moving between schools within the Multi Academy Cémpany. The staff member
is paid within the normal scale range for their role and receive no specral treatment because of their
relatlonshlp to the Director. This Dlrector resrgned during the year.

T Concannon was appointed as the Multi Academy Lead for Modern Forelgn languages She is the spouse of
a Headteacher within the Multi Academy Company.

| McNally was appornted as an Assistant Headteacher. He is the spouse of the Assistant Director of School
Improvement within the Multi Academy Company.
These were fair recruitment processes, and the staff members are remunerated within a pay scale
‘comparable to colleagues. :

All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
- Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and
obtaining their approval where required, and with the Multi Academy Company’s financial regulatlons and
normal procurement procedures._relating to connected and related party transactions.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Owing to the nature of the Multi Academy Company and the composition of the Board of Directors being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the Directors have an interest. No such related party transactions took place in the financial period.

ngagement with employees (including disabled persons)
No person is discriminated against due to a disability be that at recruitment or whllst during employment by
the Our Lady of The Magnificat Multi Academy Company. Reasonable adjustments are made to the
workplace to ensure no person is put at a disadvantagé and consideration made of their circumstances.

_ The Occupational Health team provide guidance to the Our Lady Of The Magnificat Multi Academy Company
in ensuring all employees’ needs are met, and counselling and other services are available to support the
continuance of good mental health within the Multi Academy. Company. The Executive team has grown during.
the year to include a Head of HR and a HR Manager. This has enabled the Multi Academy Company to
increase its focus on staff well-being at such a difficult time nationally.

The Multi Academy Company also operates an ‘Aspiring Leadershlp programme to support staff
development internally and to encourage communication channels. Regular briefings from the Executive
Team take place with staff to inform them of the current position of the Multi Academy Company, its aims, and
aspirations, any other material changes, and also future growth plans. This includes the fi nanC|aI position of
the Multi Academy Company.

Engagement wuth suppllers customers and others in a business relationship with the MAC
As a large employer spanning across two counties, we recognise that our relationships with partners and
suppliers is key to our effectiveness and external perceptions. The Multi Academy Company actively-
seeks to engage in service reviews with all key suppliers where we will review both value for money and
the balance between in-house and external service provision. We seek to foster open, professional
relationships with all suppliers to’ensure an ongoing, .efficient review of service provision. An example of
this is this is the outsourcing of new photocopying contracts across a large group of our schools.

Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Directors has a reasonable expectation that the Multi

Academy Company has adequate resources to continue in existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details
-referencing the adoption of the gomg concern basis can be found in the statement of accountmg policies.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Multi Academy Company derives its main income from the DfE via the ESFA in the form of annual grants
which are restricted in purpose. These grants can be seen along with the associated expenditure as -
Restricted Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Multi Academy Company also receives grants for the purpose of purchasing fixed assets and for dealing
with the items classed as priority on its asset management plans. Due to expansion, this year was the first
time that school capital funding (SCA) funding was allocated to the Multi Academy Company so that it no
longer had to bid for Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) grants. These are shown as restricted income in the
Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund is reduced by annual deprecnatlon charges over the
useful life of the assets concerned

During the twelve-month period of 1st September to 31st August 2023, the Multi Academy Company received
a total income of £35,086,450 and incurred total expenditure of £35429,600. The deficit for the year,-
including all funds is £343,150 and the. balance of reserves at the year end, including actuarial pension
movements was £3,068,805. Five Warwickshire primary schools also joined the Multi Academy Company on
September 1t 2022.The income from the reserves transferred in for these schools (including pension) totalled
£100,107.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The in year operating surplus excluding fixed assets, actuarial pension adjustments, transfers from new
schools and capital transfers was £286,723 and the balance of operating reserves was £3,172,139.

The net book value of fixed assets at 31st August 2023 was £1,972,364. and movements'in tangible fi )red
assets are shown in note 15 to the Financial Statements. The assets were used -exclusively for provrdrng
education and the associated support services to the puprls of the Multi Academy Company..

Other assets were transferred from the additional primary schools into the Our Lady of The Magnrf icat Multi- -
Academy Company on 1%t September 2022 to the value of £99,970.

The Multi Academy Company has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of
its non-teaching staff transferred upon conversion. The deficit is incorporated within the Statement of
Financial Activity with details in note 27 to the financial statements. This is a material pension liability arising

from obligations to a defined benefit pension scheme on the financial position of the Multi Academy- -

Company. This company will continue to contribute towards the deficit reduction plan as agreed with the
actuaries for those schools within Worcestershire, as well as making its employer contributions based on the
current- service of employees. FRS102 statements are received for the schools within the Multi Academy
Company on an annual basis. The additional payments payable to Worcestershire: County Council were
made in May 2023 so that a discount could be recerved and therefore these are removed as a liability in the
FRS102 statements:

Reserves Policy

The Directors review reserves both in amount and nature annually. This review includes the nature of income
and expenditure streams and the need to match income with future commitments. The Directors consider all
the individual schools ‘within the Multi Academy Company and look at the uncertainty and key risks
associated with future income streams as well as costs. : :

All reserves are held in accordance with the requirements laid down in the Master Funding Agreement and
the Academy Trust Handbook. As per the Multi Academy Company’s policy the reserves level is determined
when the budget is set annually- in the summer term. The targét set as an appropriate minimum level of
reserves is £2,436,500, being five weeks of total staffing costs across the Multi Academy Company. At the
end of the year 2% of General Annual Grant funding (GAG) remains within the school with the balance berng
transferred into a central fund. :

The level has been set to protect against key financial risks and being prudent has never been more
important when-there are many external economic challenges facing both the economy and education which
have been building significantly during the academic year. - .

As this target was achieved within the year and as the Multi Academy Company has grown significantly in the
last three years the Board of Directors voted to introduce a new system of reserves from- September 2023.
Comparable to GAG pooling, the Catholic Collaborative Funding Model will result in a large proportion of
costs being managed by the central team to ensure financial savings, the use of strong and ethical suppliers
whom are often nationally recognised, good financial controls and the fairer drstrrbutron of funds within the
- Multi Academy Company. :

The School Improvement Team ha's expanded over the last year and works at maintaining standards 'and'
expectations linked to the Multi Academy Company strategic plan. In addition, it provides external support to
other organisations and schools through the Department of Education TSI programmes and Behaviour Hubs.

At the end of the year before the GAG adjustment there were schools in a deficit position. The Multi Academy
Company has set a target to achieve a reasonable surplus in each school to increase reserves to an
acceptable level. Each school has previously been considered rndrvrdually for budgeting purposes

At the end of the year before the GAG adjustment there were two schools in a defi crt posutron-

St Mary's Catholic Primary School in Broadway and Our Lady’s Catholic Primary School«rn Alcester.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) :

‘DIRECTORS’ REPORTr(CONTIANUED) - S o . -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 o ' : -

Both are small half form entry schools with low numbers on roll. 'St Mary's in Broadway now works very
_closely with St Mary’s Evesham sharing staff, best practice and an Executive Headteacher. The Multi
Academy Company has invested in two new purpose-built classrooms which should help to attract -and
increase ‘pupil numbers. This investment was supported with funding from .Section 106 income from
Worcestershire County Council and the Diocese of Birmingham Education service. This is part of the plan to
make the school financially vrable :

Our~Lady’s Catholic Primary,school is also in deficit and has struggled with pupil numbers since its Ofsted
judgement of Requires Improvement in February 2020. The Local Governing Body was replaced by a School
Improvement Board and a new Headteacher has been appomted from 1st September 2023 as the Multi
Academy Company supports it movrng forwards.

In future years individual school budgets are set at net zero as surpluses and deficits are offset within the'
central fund as the company introduces its new funding model. This enables the Multi Academy Company to
offer the best possible educational outcomes whilst ensuring that we offer a diverse range of experiences to
ensure that our young people have qualities and trarts that support them as balanced and fulfilled members of
society. .

The value of free reserves held amounts to £3,141,239 of which £348,667 is attributed to Restrrcted General
funds

The defined benefit pension scheme reserve continues to have a negative balanc,e;‘T'he effect of the deficit

. position of the pension scheme is that.the Muiti Academy Company is paying higher employers’ pension .
.contributions over a period of years. The higher employers’ pension contributions will be met from the Multi
Academy Company's budgeted annual income. ‘Whilst the deficit will not be immediately eliminated, there
- should be no actual cash flow deficit on the fund, nor any direct impact on the free reserves of the Multi
Academy Company. : :

Investment Policy o '
The Multi'Academy has a Reserves policy which states that reserve funds wrll be held wrthrn Lloyd's Bank
PLC or in other instruments and investments as agreed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

A new rnvestment policy was agreed by the Board of Directors within the academrc year ending 315t August
2023 which has resulted in funds being placed in deposit accounts within Lloyds Bank PLC. Due to national
economic events and mcreased interest rates £6,858 was generated as income within the year. The finance
team will continue to analyse cashflow to ensure maximum income can be gained from mvestments without
|mpact|ng on the nature and purpose of the organrsatlon

J
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES '

The Multi Academy Company has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the ESFA.
The Multi Academy Company 's revenue is ultimately public funded, and this level of requirement is expected
to continue with all funding from this source. There can be no assurance that government policy or practice
will remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same level or on the same terms. .

This risk is mitigated in several ways:

+ By ensuring the Multi Academy Company is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training
and the continued- focus of school improvement = throughout - the Multi Academy
Company which is prevalent in its academic results. This has resulted in.a larger School
Improvement team to support the Iarger Multr Academy Company This will maintain or increase puprl ‘

. numbers.

-« Considerable focus and mvestment are placed on marntalnlng and managing key relatronshrps with
stakeholders internally and within the local commumtles
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) ’

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CQNTINU_ED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

~

e Through continued carefully managed growth to ensure future sustainability following the successful
- merger to date and addition of five new schools to the Multi Academy Company from September.

+ 2022.There is further growth strategy being planned at present: :

* From careful succession planning to ensure stability across.the schools within the Multl Academy
‘Company. This is supported by an in- -house ‘Aspiring Leadership’ programme. ;

e Regular meetings of the Finance and Resources, and Risk & Audit Committees for Directors to
understand the position across the schools natuonally and across educatlon and in a timely manner
to further mitigate any risks.

¢ By continued investment in our estate to ensure that it is safe, .well managed and complies with
current regulations. The Multi Academy Company invested an additional £168K of revenue in capital
projects during the year to support the SCA and DFC funding provided.

» By ensuring we keep up to date with all estates legislation and that as well as a central point of
responsibility we train our Senior Leadership teams both within the schools and centrally to ensure
that there is a high level of understanding around Health and Safety. -

There has been a’ reasonable in year surplus generated across the Multi Academy- Company and the
exposure to financial risk is low due to tight financial controls. This surplus was difficult to achieve in terms of
economic uncertainty and. was supported by the stringent controls around staffing from regular Curriculum
Led Financial Planning meetings. There are .no credit agreements except for operating leases and cashflow is
being rewewed monthly to ensure continued Ilqurdlty growth

FUNDRAISING _
Small amounts of fundraising took place during the year totalling £78 546. -

Parent organisations generate income through activities mvolvrng parents and the commumty This income is
then shared with the schools into targeted areas such as furniture, minibus marntenance and specialised
Iearnrng equipment and resources. :

" When fundrarsmg events take place in the schools across the Multi Academy Company the guidelines within
the Charity Commission publication “Charity Fundrarsmg a guide to trustee duties (CC20).are followed.

The schools raise funds without the assistance of any commercial fundraisers for charities and these are
transferred to the chosen charities. Under no circumstances does the Multi Academy Company put any
undue pressure on any person to donate funds

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING

| + measures taken to.improve energy efficiency,in the period ' . : |

UK Greenhouse gas emlssrons and energy use data 1 September 2021 | 1 September 2020

for the period , to 31 August| to 31 August
, - 2022 - . . 2021

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) | 6,691,853 ‘ 5,167,312

Energy consumptron break down (kWh) (optronal) A .

. gas, 4 E 4,855868 | 3,612,830

« electricity, ' S ‘ 1,835,985 | 1,551,987 :

-transport fuel - - ' T ‘ - 1 2,495. '

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 889 ' 662

Gas consumption - ' 8 o 0
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- OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

-DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Owned transport — mini-buses
Total scope 1 '

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2%e
Purchased electricity ‘ _ . 30 330

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO%e
Business travel in employee-owned vehicles 10 ' | 9.67 ¢

- Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e . A 1,296 1,001

Intensity ratio 4 _ . ,
Tonnes CO2e per pupil . o ) 0.25 (5,284) | 0.31(4152) -

Quantification and Reporting Methodology :

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Gmdelmes We have also used the
GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2022 UK Governments Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement :
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emlssmns in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector. : .

Measures taken to improve' energy efficiency . ’

The Multi Academy Company is constantly reviewing its energy effcnency as part of its capltal asset
management plans and is also being prudent in its use.

It has also made a bid for funding to support a decarbonisation project at its largest schools - St Augustine’s
Catholic High School in Redditch. This considerable project is for the mstallatlon of air source heat pumps‘
and a new building management control system

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS
The Directors .of the Multi Academy Company are continuing to work with the Archdiocese and the
Department for Education to welcome a further 7 schools into the Muilti Academy Company wnthm the next 2
years. :

A
" RATIONALE
. The ambition of the Multi Academy Company expansion is to create the leading Multi Academy Company
within the Archdiocese of Birmingham and one that is nationally recognised as being a centre of excellence
for Catholic education and leadership.  This proposal is fully supported by the Archdiocese of Birmingham
who have identified a total of 24 schools which could join the Multi Academy Company making it signifi cantly
. larger and more divérse than any other Multi Academy Company within the Archdiocese.:

BUILDING CAPACITY TO ACHIEVE GROWTH STRATEGY ,

The Multi Academy Company has secured Trust Capacity Improvement funding to further provide capacity in
_ both the School Improvement section of the Multi Academy Company and the Operations team. The central
team retains. oversight of all compliance activity including finance, construction and human resources. The
Multi Academy Company central team commission external reviews on an annual basis in safeguardmg,
- teaching standards, health and safety and site & premises to support the management teams on each site-in
-fulfilling their duties. The external contracts allow the central team to grow sustainably without creating a
large central function. ’
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) A
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

AUDITORS .
In so far as the Directors are aware:

« there is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company’s auditor is unaware; and .
o the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit mformatron and to establrsh that the audrtor |s aware of that mformatron

‘The audrtors Brshop Fleming LLP, are wrllmg to contrnue in office and a resolution to appoint them will be
proposed at the annual general meetrng A

Directors’ report incorporating a strategic report approved by order of the Board of Directors, as the
company Directors, on 13t December 2023 and signed on the Board's behalf by:

l/r/ow_ Eﬁeub_\aq

Y Brennan
Chair of Board of Directors
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

) . ’ .
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE'YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY -

* As Directors we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Our Lady of the Magnificat Multi
- Academy Company has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However,
such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss:

The Board of Directors has delegated the day-to -day responsibility to the Cathollc Senior Education Leader
(CSEL) as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety
and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in .
the funding agreement between Our lady of the Magnifi icat Multi Academy Company and the Secretary of
" State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Directors any.material
weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance mcluded here. supplements that descrlbed in the Directors’ Report and in the
Statement of Directors'’ Respon5|blllt|es

Governance Review

In August 2022, the. Board of Directors undertook an eternal review of govérnance. This was commissioned
by the DfE from the National Governance Association (NGA) as part of the expansion of the Multi Academy
Company. The review was led by an experienced professional, a National leader of Governance, Ruth
Agnew. .
Meeting attendance A ;
. i ' i
The Board of Directors has formally met seven times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings
of the Board of Directors was as follows:

Director ' Meetlngs attended Out of a possible

Yvonne Brennan, Chair 7 . 7

Noe! Burke 5 7

Mike Connolly 7 7

Mike Fletcher 2 3 )
Kari Gordon 7 7

Bernadette Mackie 7 7

Michael Tilt 6 7

“Victoria Wells 5 7 -
Christopher Bird 5 7

- One member of the Board — Mike Fletcher - resigned on 8 March 2023.

The Finance and Resources Committee is a sub-commlttee of the main Board of Directors. Its purpose is set
out in the Committee’s terms of reference. ?

The Committee met six times during the year. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Director : Meetings attended - Out of a possible
Yvonne Brennan 6 6
-Mike Fletcher 1 2
Bernadette Mackie 2 2
Michael Tilt 6 6
Christopher Bird v 4 6
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Risk and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Directors. Its-purpose is set out in the
Committee’s terms of reference. :

The Committee met five times during the year. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows; .

Director : Meetings attended " Out of a possible
Noel Burke - 4 5 -
Bernadette Mackie 4 , 4
Christopher Bird 5 . 5,

The two committees were merged in June 2023 and attendance at the one Flnance Resources, Rlsk and
Audit Committee during the year was as follows:

Director ' ' Meetings attended _ Out of a possible
Noel Burke - . - 1 1 .
Yvonne Brennan 1 -1

1 Michael Tilt : 1 1-
Christopher Bird ' A 1 1
Bernadette Mackie 0 1

The Catholic Mission, Performance and Standards Committee is a sub- commlttee of the main Board of
Directors. Its purpose is set outin the Commlttee s terms of reference.

* The Committee mét six trmes during the year. Attendance at meetmgs in the year was as follows: N

Director Meetings attended ' Out of a possible
Kari Gordon 6 : 6 :
Bernadette Mackie 6 6
Victoria Wells - 6 . 6
Yvonne Brennan 5 6
Mike Connolly 5 6
Antony Tamburro (co-opted) 4 5

The Remuneratron Committee is a sub- commlttee of the main Board of Directors. Its purpose is set out in the
Committee’s terms of reference.

The Committee met two times during the year. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Director : Meetings attended Qut of a possible
Kari Gordon 2 2
Yvonne Brennan ' 2 . . 2
Michael Tilt v 2 2
Noel Burke . 1 2

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the Catholic Senior Executive leader has responsibility for ensuring that the Multi
"~ Academy Company delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands
that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer
resources received.

The Accounti'ng Ofﬁcer, considers how the Multi Academy Company’ls use of its resources has provided good
“value for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Directors where value for money can
be improved including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. :

\
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Accounting Officer of Our Lady of the Magnificat Multi Academy Company accepts that they are
responsible and accountable for ensuring the Multi Academy Company delivers good value in the use of
publi¢ resources.

They are aware of the.guide to the academy value for money statements published by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency and understand that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. The Accounting Officer reports to the Board
of Directors where value for money can be lmproved including the use of benchmarking data where
appropriate.

The Accountlng Officer for the Mult| Academy Company has delivered rmproved value for money dunng the
year by:

. The tendering of core services for energy contracts, photocopying, catering, and building projects

e . Joint procurement across the Multi Academy Company of all IT devices mcludlng laptops, prlnters and
tablets and reprographic hardware

o Central review and management of all sites and services across the Mult| Academy Company to

ensure Health and Safety compliance-on behalf of the Directors including additional training and regular
updates and a Health & Safety committee.

‘. Investing in software development to support a robust model of Integrated Curriculum Led Financial:
‘Planning to provide appropriate staffing and resources across the Multi Academy Company schools. This will
enable decisions to be made faster and ensure consistency by importing the payroll directly into the system.
. Maintaining adequate reserves to ensure the future security of the Multi Academy Company in line
with the expectations outlined by the ESFA. These levels have been exceeded at present.

We have been able to achieve a wide range of |mprovements in the operations of our sites through a number
of projects: :

The Multi Academy Company received an annual allocation for School Condition Allocation (SCA) capital
funding, which is utilised by the organisation to address high priority building/estates works. The works are
identified through various reporting sources such.as condition surveys, fire risk assessments and

" safeguarding -audits. The funding is allocated across the group of schools via a scoring method which
considers the urgency and category of works, with the highest scoring categories being safeguarding and
health and safety. A large proportion of SCA to date has been allocated to penmeter fencing improvements,
fire safety works and structural works.

The Operatlons Team |s in the process of administrating several higher value procurement activities whereby ‘
all or a large proportion of the MAC schools are included. The aim is to centralise larger procurement
~ activities for all schools, entering MAC wide contracts (instead of individual school contracts) to achieve the
best value and ensure compliance with procurement regulations. Example of services procured to date
include energy, reprographics, IT services, and software subscriptions. Current (ongorng) procurement
activities include caterlng, cashless till solutions, grounds maintenance and broadband

The review by the Accounting Officer is supported by
. Internal scrutiny report
. Reports from Chief Financial Officer and the Director of Operations.

. THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed. to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Multi Academy Company policies, aims and objectives,
to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the |mpaot should they be realised, and to manage
them effi C|ently, effectively, and economically.
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" OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE'STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 .

The system of internal control has been in place since the merger of the two Multi Academy Companies in
September 2021.1t remained in place for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date
of approval of the annual report and fi nancral statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Directors has reviewed the key risks to which the Multi Academy Company is exposed together
with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks
including the risks associated with rapid growth. The Board of Directors is of the view that there is a formal
on-going process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the Multi Academy Company’s significant risks
-that has been in place for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. -

This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors at every meeting 'of the Finance, Resources, Risk .
and Audit Committee. This takes the form of reviewing the risk register which is owned by the Executive
team, and they jointly concentrate on strategic risks whilst retaining ownership of their specific areas. The
process involves the team bringing to the attention of the Board the current risks and the strategies being
deployed to mitigate these risks. This subcommittee reports back to the Full Board every term.

- THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

On an annual basis the auditor reports to the Board of Directors, through the Finance, Resources, Risk &
Audit Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Directors’
financial responsibilities. These are also reported at each meeting by the Executive team.

The Multi Academy Company’s system of mterrtal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and admrmstratrve procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability.

it mcludes

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and penodrc financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors

. ~ setting targets to measure financial and other performance indicators. -

. -regular reviews by the Finance, Resources, Risk & Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
. setting targets to measure financial and other performance mdrcators

. identification and management of risks

The Board of Directors has considered the need for a specific Internal Audit function and has decided not to
appoint specific Internal Audit staff. The decision was made to buy in an internal audit service from Strictly
Education. This decision was made by the Risk & Audit Committee to perform addrtlonal internal checks
during the year 2022/23 :

The internal Audltors role includes advising on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Multi Academy Company'’s financial systems. In particular, the mternal checks carried out in the current
period included the foIIowrng three areas:

1 — Income Management: Fo||owmg a review of requested documents regarding governance structure and
processes, and discussions with the Multi Academy Company it was found that the Multi Academy Company
has strong income management controls in place.

2 — Cyber Security: Following a review of requested documents regarding HR management and discussions
with the Multi Academy Company it was found that the Multi Academy Company has reasonable cyber
security controls.

3 -~ VAT: Following a review of requested documents regarding payroll management, and discussions with
the Multi Academy Company it was found that the Multi Academy Company has strong VAT controls.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

o

Remedlal actlon followmg the intérnal audit reports focus. on the areas Ilsted above and WI|| be |mplemented ,
over the next two academic terms. .

On an annual. ba5|s when duscussmg the annual accounts, the Auditors report to the Board of Directors on
the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Dlrectors financial
responsibilities. .

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the CSEL has respons1b|I|ty for reviewing the effectlveness of the system of mternal
control. During the year in question the review has.been informed by:

. The work of the internal audit process completed by an external prowder and its gradmgs and’
recommendations

) the work of the external auditors lncludlng dunng an |nter|m audit and recommendations made dunng
both audits

e . _the school resource management tool including Curriculum Led Financial. Plannlng which is W|dely
used throughout the Multi Academy Company

e  the work of the executive managers within the Multi Academy Company who have responSIblllty for
the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

. Reports to the Director's sub-committees -

. Correspondence from the ESFA

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the -implications of the result of their review of the system of' :
internal control-by the Directors and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure contlnuous |mprovement of
the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Difectors on 13t December 2023 and slgned on its behalf
by: .

< Can.

Y Brennan 3 : - - . Tleverage ‘
Chair of Board of Directors . ' Accounting Officer

‘/./QW Bren oy
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

.STATEMENT ON REGULARiTY, PRQPRIETYAND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Our Lady of the Magnificat Multi Academy Cempany, | have considered my .
" responsibility to notify the Academy Board of Directors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (
(ESFA) of material irregularity, |mpropnety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding,

" including for estates safety and management under the funding agreement between the Academy and the

Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the
Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the Multi Academy Company Board of Directors are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use -of all funds by the Multi Academy Company, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the Multi Academy Company's funding agreement and the Academies Trust
Handbook 2022. . :

I confirm that no mstances of material |rregular|ty, |mpropr|ety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any mstances are identified after the date of this statement these will be notified to the Board of

T Leverage
Accounting Officer
Date: 13 December 2023
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBiLlTIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

'

The Directors (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the ‘purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies .
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting -
. Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its mcomrng resources and application of resources,
including its mcome and expenditure, for that perlod In preparing these fi nancral statements, the Dlrectors are
required to: . :

. select smtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e _ observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Drrectron
2022 to 2023, '
. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have beén followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained'in the financial statements;
e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Directors are reésponsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficiént to show and explain

the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taklng :
reasonable steps for the preventron and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible- for ensuring that in its' conduct and operation 'the, charitable company applies.
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensurlng grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended. :

The Dlrectors are responsible for the marntenance and |ntegr|ty of the ‘corporate and fmancral information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparatron and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from Iegrslatron in other jurisdictions. .

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors and srgned on rts behalf by:
\/I/QW_ B&eu nan

‘Y Brennan
Chair of Board of Directors
Date: 13th December 2023
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY .
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF OUR
LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Our Lady of the Magnif icat Multi Academy Company (the 'Multi
Academy Company') for the year ended 31 August 2023. which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities,
the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation’is applicable .
law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
Financial. Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard .applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education
and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the flnanmal statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Multi Academy Companys affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of

' its incoming resources and application of resources, including its mcome and expenditure for the.year
" then ended;

o have been properly prepared in accordance W|th United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountlng

Practice; and :

o have been prepared i in accordance with the requurements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP

2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Educatlon and Skills Funding

Agency.

Basis for opinion

- We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
. law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit

-of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Multi Academy Company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United
Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. ‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern .

In auditing the f nancial statements, we have concluded that the Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any ma_terial uncertainties relating to events or
~ conditions that, mduwdually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Multi Academy Company's ability to -
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the fi nancual statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the respon5|b|I|t|es of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. .

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors' report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information’ contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a matenal misstatement in the financial
. statements themselves '
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- OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
' (A COMPANY LIMITED BY.GUARANTEE)
)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF OUR
LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY (CONTINUED)

f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other -
information, we are requrred to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard. ’
' Opinion on other_ matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2606

In our opinion, based on the work ,undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Directors’ Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance wrth applicable legal

requrrements
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding'of the Multi Academy Company and its environment obtained-in
the course of the audit, we have not |dent|f ed material misstatements in the Directors’ Report |nclud|ng the
Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following mattters in-relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requrres us to report to you if, in our opinion

e adequate accounting records -have not been kept, or returns. adequate for our audit have not been -
received from branches not visited by us; or
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns or
e certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

As explained more fully.in the Directors' responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Multi Academy Company for the purposes of. company law) are responsible for the preparation of the .
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Multi Academy Company's :
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to, going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Multi Academy Company or

to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurarice about whether the financial statements as a whole are free .
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a.guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered. material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these fi nanmal statements.

Irregul_arities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with Iaws and regulations. We design' procedures
.in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of |rregular|ties
* including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting |rregu|ar|t|es including fraud is
detailed below r A

Page 22



OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY ,GL.JARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF OUR
LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY (CONTINUED)

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, |nc|ud|ng fraud and non-
compliance with laws and regulations, we considered the following:

¢ the nature of the Academy sector, control environment and the Multi Academy Company s performance;

o results of our enquiries of management and the Director board, including the committees charged with
governance over the Multi Academy Company's finance and contre|, about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of |rregular|t|es

e any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Multi jAcademy Company's documentation of
their policies and procedures relating to: identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and
whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance; detecting and responding to the risks of fraud
and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; the internal controls established
to mitigate risks of fraud or noncompliance with laws and regulatrons and assessment of the |mpact of
schools joining the Multi Academy Company in relation to these areas;

e how the Multi Academy Company ensured it met its obligations arising from it being fi nanced by the ESFA
and other funders, and as such material compliance with these obligations is required to ensure the Multi
Academy Company will continue to receive its public funding and be authorised to operate, including around
ensuring there is no material unauthorised use of funds and expenditure;

¢ how the Multi Academy Company ensured it met its obligations to its principal regulator, the Secretary of
State for Education; and

o the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and mvolvmg relevant internal Academy

" specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential
indicators of fraud. . '

As a result of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the -
organisation for fraud, which included incorrect recognition of revenue, ‘management override of controls using -
manual journal entries, procurement and payroll. We identified the greatest potentlal for fraud as incorrect
recognition of revenue and management override using manual journal entries.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to
. the risk of management override. We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks
that the Multi Academy Company operates in, focusing on provisions of those laws and regulations that had a
~direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The key laws
and regulations we considered in this context included the Academies Accounts Direction, Academies Trust:
Handbook, UK Companies Act and tax Ieglslatron

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect. on the
financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the Multi Academy Company's ability to
operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included safeguarding regulations, data protection regulations, .
occupational health and safety regulations, education and mspectrons legislation, building legislation and
employment Iegrslatron

Our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

e reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supportmg documentation to assess compliance -
with provisions of relevant laws .and regulations described as ‘having a direct effect on the fi nancial
statements;

e reviewing the financial statement disclosur,es and testing to supporting documentation to assess the
recognition of revenue,

. enquiring of Directors and management and those charged with governance concerning actual and potential
litigation and clarms .

e performing procedures to confrrm material compliance with the requirements of its regulators

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud;
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF OUR
LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY (CONTINUED)

. )
» . reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing internal control reports; and

e in addressmg the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of
journal entries and other adjustments; and assessing whether the judgements made in making accountlng
estimates are |nd|cat|ve of a potential bias.

’
'

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members, and remained alert to any indications of fraud-or non-compliance with laws and regulatlons throughout
the audit. A

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not. detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resuiting from an error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery,
_ misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the
further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reﬂected in the
financial statements, the Iess likely we would become aware of it.

A further description 6f our responsibilities for the audit of the financial staternents is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' report. '

Use of our report

This report is- made solely to the charitable Multi Academy Company's members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable Multi Academy Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors'
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone.other than the charitable Multi Academy Company and |ts members, as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the oplnlons we have formed :

. Andrew Wood FCCA (Senior statutory audltor)

for and-on behalf of
Bishop Fleming LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
1-3 College Yard
Worcester

" WR12LB

20t December-2022
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) .
INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO OUR LADY

OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 27th May 2022 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Our Lady of the Magnificat Multi Academy Company during the year 1 September 2022
to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

- This report is made solely to Our Lady of the Magnificat Multi Academy Company and ESFA in accordance with |
‘the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Our Lady of the

. Magnificat Multi Academy Company and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no

other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than Our Lady of the Magnificat Multi Academy Company and ESFA, for our work, for this report or for the
conclusion we have formed. ,
'Respectrve responsibilities of Our Lady of the Magnrficat Multi Academy Company s accountmg

officer and the reporting accountant .

“The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Our Lady of the Magnificat Multi Academy
Company's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 18th August 2021 and the
Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received is applied for the purposes mtended by Parllament and the financial transactions conform to the

- authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United .Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 12023 have not been applied to purposes °
mtended by Parliament or that the fi nancral transactions do-not conform to the authorities which govern them.

1

E Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts |ssued by ESFA. We performed a Irmited assurance engagement as
defned -in our engagement letter. : :

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient approprrate evrdence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity. .

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regulanty and propnety of the:
Multi Academy Company s income and expendlture

Our work on regularity included a review of the internal controls policies and procedures that have been
implemented and an assessment of their design and effectiveness to understand how the academy complied
with the framework of authorities. We also reviewed the reports commissioned by the directors to assess the
internal controls throughout the year. .

We performed detailed testing based on our assessment of the risk of material irregularity, impropriety and -
noncompliance. This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements where appropriate and
included analytical review and detailed substantive testing of transactions.

In line with the Framework and guide for external auditors and reporting accountants of academy trusts issued

April 2023, .we have not performed any additional procedures regarding the Multr Academy Company’s
compllance with safeguarding, health and safety and estates management.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
{A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO OUR LADY
OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
(CONTINUED) .

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attentlon WhICh suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 Septémber 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
_applied to purposes intended by Parllament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authontles which

govern them. ’

by P

Reporting Accountant .
Bishop Fleming LLP -

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

Date: 20th-December 2022
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

- STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

. As restated

3,147,850

L R_estrictéd —
Unrestricted  'Restricted fixed asset Total " Total
funds " funds funds funds funds
, 2023 2023 - 2023 2023 2022
Note £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital
grants: - ‘ 3
Transfer from existing .
academies o - - - - (4,578,213)
Transfer from.Local ' ) .
- Authority 26 . 66,556 . (66,419) 99,970 100,107 -
~ Other donations and
capital grants - - 331,074 - .1,550,597 1,881,671 1,289,041
Other trading activities 5 696,629 - - 696,629 422,324
" Investments - 6 6,858 - - 6,858 o o-
Charitable activities 4 949,429 31,451,756 - 32,401,185 25,672,781
Total income - e 2,050,546 31,385,337 1,650,567 35,086,450 22,805,933
Expenditure on: . . :
Charitable activites . & 1,454,557 32,059,022, 1,916,021 35,429,600 28,248,385
Total expenditure , . 1,454,557 32,059,022 1,916,021 35,429,600 28,248,385
Net S B
income/(expenditur . ’ . P - :
) e) ‘ 595,989 (673,685) - (265,454) (343,150) = (5,442,452)
" . Transfers between = - T ' ' '
funds : 20 - (168,473) 168,473 - -
Net movement in ‘ '
funds before other
recognised = —_— - A
- gains/(losses) ‘ 595,989 (842,158) '(96,981) (343,150) (5,442,452)
" Other recognised R '
gains/(losses):
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit : ' o o
~ pension schemes 28. - 3,555,000 - : 3,555,000 11,105,000
Pension surplus not : _ ' S
"~ recognised - 28 Co- (64,000) - (64,000) -
Net mbvement in — :
funds o ' 595,989 . 2,648,842 (96,981) 5,662,548
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY .
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

' Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought.
forward as prewously
stated

Prior year adjustment

Total funds brought
fomard as restated

Net movement in funds

v 'Total funds carrled
forward -

Restricted

' As restated’
Unrestricted: Restricted fixed asset Total ' . Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 . 2023 . 2023 2022
£ ‘ £ £ £ £
12,196,583  (5,116,275) 3,656,647 736,955 (4,109,593)
- ‘ - (816,000) (816,000)  (1,632,000)
2,196,583 _ ‘ (5,116,'275) 2,840,647 '(79,045). (5,741,593) .
595,989 2,648,842 (96,981) 3,147,850 5,662,548
( 2,792,572 (2,467,433) 2,743,666 3,068,805 - »(79,045).l

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 32 to 69 form part of these financial statements.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

REGISTERED NUMBER:09064485

~ BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and |n hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

A Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pehéion scheme liability '

" Total net assets

Funds of the Multi Académy Company

Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension asset

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
. .Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Notg
15
16

17

18

28 -

20
20

20

g

20
20

- 2023

1,998,392

1,998,392

4372

1,060,812
5,860,159

6,925,343

(3,007,930)

13,917,413
5,915,805

5,915,805
(2,847,000) -

3,068,805

2,743,666

379,567

3,123,233
(2,847,000)

276,233
2,792,572

3,068,805

As resfatéd
2022
T

11,670,139

1,670,139

1,175,389

4,736,939

.5,912,328

(2,316,512)

3,595,816
5,265,955

5,265,955
- (5,345,000)

(79,045)

2840 647
228.725

3,069,372

(5,345,000)

- (2,275,628)

2,196,583

. (79,045)

The financial statements oh- pages 27 to 69 were approved by the Dlrectors and authorlsed for issue on 13
December 2023 and are signed on their behalf by '

l/l/@,w_ Bren ku] -

“Yvonne Brennan
Chair of Board of Directors
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
REGISTERED NUMBER:09064485

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
. AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023 K

The noteé on pages 32 to 69 form part of these financial statements.
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: OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY.
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) :

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
" . FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31:AUGUST 2023

Cash flows from operatiﬁQ'actiVities
'Net cash provided by operating activities o 22

Cash flows from investing.activities | . _ A 23

Change_in cash and cash equivalehts in the year

" Cash and caSh equivalénts -at the beginning of the year
Cash transferred on conversion to an academy

‘Cash and cash equivalents at the end of thé'year . o . 24, 25

The notes on pages 32 to 69 form part of these financial statements

- Page 31

4 'As restated
2023 2022
£ £

569,327 2,164,929

(74,688) (261,191)

494,639 1903738

4,736,939 ° 1,888,435
628,581 944,766

- 5,860,159 4,736,939



~ OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies

11

1.2

13

Donations

A summary of the pnncrpal accountrng policies adopted judgments and key sources of estimation
uncertalnty, is set out below. :

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL’_ STATEMENTS

_The financial statements of the Multi Academy Company, which is a public benefit entity under FRS

102, have been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Charities SORP
(FRS 102) 'Ac':counting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable
to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic or Ireland (FRS 102)(effect|ve 1 January 2019)', Financial Reporting Standard
102 'The Financial Reportrng Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The Fmancral Statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. : . .

GOING CONCERN

‘The Board of Directors has a reasonable exbectatlon that the Multi Academy Company has adequate :

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it contlnues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Flnan0|al Statements _ .

© The Multi Academy Company has produced a three-year budget forecast which demonstrates a

surplus for the financial year ending the 31st August 2023. A sustainability plan and review program

- are in place to ensure the individual school's budget within their General Annual Grant income. The

overall deficit. for the year was £343,150, and the free reserves carry forward as at 31 August 2023
are £3,141,239. The Board continues to support St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Broadway) and
Our Lady's Catholic Primary School to overcome their current deficit positions. Projected budget
outturns indicate that the deficit at this school will be further'reduced in the 2023/24 period. .

INCOME

All income is recognised in. the statement of Financial Activities. once the charity has entitlement to
the funds, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included .in the statement of financial actuvrtres on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for 'specific purposes but not expended durlng the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition. is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met Where
entltlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued '

* General Annual Grant is recognlsed in fuII in the statement of financial activities in the year for. which

it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as

aliability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent

amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended. :

Donations are recognised on.a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
-(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) '

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

13

INCOME (CONTINUED)

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognlsed in the year it is recelvable and to the extent
the Multi Academy Company has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in 'Stocks'
and ‘Income from Other Trading Activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against
‘Income from Other Trading Activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from Other
Trading Activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items
they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold Th|s income is recognlsed
within ‘Income from Other Trading Activities'. . ‘

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Multi Academy Company on conversion to an
academy, the transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet at
the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Multi Academy Company. An equal
amount of income is recognised as a transfer on conversion within ‘Income from Donations and
Capital Grants' to the net assets received. '

Transfer of existing academies into the Multi Academy Company

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the Multi
Academy Company, the transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance
sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Multi Academy Company. An
equal amount of income is recognised for the transfer-of an existing academy into the Multi Academy
Company within 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' to the net assets acquired.

Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Multi Academy
Company) ‘

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to .

measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is

recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included

* in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance

14

with the Multi Academy Company's accountmg policies.

EXPENDITURE

) Llabllltlee are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is ,a legal or constructive obligation

- committing the charity to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer or economic benefits will be

required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is
accounted for ‘on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all cost
related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have
been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. All resources expended
are mcluswe of irrecoverable VAT, where applicable.

The Multl ‘Academy Company is mcurrmg Apprentlceship Levy which will be used towards future
training. At the balance sheet date, the Multi Academy Company carries forwards the value of unused -
Apprenticeship Levy within Other Debtors where there is a reasonable expectation that appropriate .
training will be incurred in the future periods against which the levy charge can be used. '
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. - Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

1.5

1.6

EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)

Charitable activities ) .

These are costs incurred on the Multi Academy Company's educational operations, including support
costs and costs relating to the governance of the Multi Academy Company apportloned to charitable
actlvmes .

Governance costs .
These include the costs -attributable to the MAC's compliance with the constitutional and statutory
requirements, including audit, strategic management and directors’ meetings and feimbursed
expenses. t o : .

Allocation and apportionment of costs

- The Multi Academy Company receives funding allocation from the ESFA. Each school within the

MAC is allocated their funding based on the funding formula. The schools within the MAC contribute
to any central costs that are occurred. These costs are agreed by all schools. The calculation is
based on 5% of each 'schools. General Annual Grant, adjusted specific sport costs relating to an

individual school. ‘
All resources expended are inclusive of |rrecoverable VAT

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Multi Academy Company; this is normally upon notification of the mterest pa|d or
payable by the institution with whom the funds are depOS|ted

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Where the Multi Academy Company has been granted use of school buildings from the Diocese of

_Birmingham under Supplementary Agreements, the Academies Accounts Direction prescribes that

under this agreement the risks and rewards of the ownership remain with the Diocese. In such
instances, land and buildings are not included on the balance sheet of the Multi Academy Company.

The Supplement Agreement includes the right for the Diocese of Birmingham Trustees to give no - -

less than 2 years written notice to the Multi Academy Company and Secretary State of Education to
terminate the agreement. No such wrltten notice has been received as at the date of the approval of
the financial statements

The MAC includes a notional donatuon and correspondlng notional rent expenses for the use of these
assets. . .

All items purchased with a value over £2, 000 (the Academy s capltallsatlon limit) must be Capitalised
and input in the asset register.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of spe'ci'fic‘ grants, either from the

government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly-to the restricted fixed ‘asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acqwred with unrestricted funds depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. - Accounting policies (continued)

1.6

1.7

1.8

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

DepreC|at|on is prowded on the following bases

Slte |mprovements - 2 years straight-line
Fixtures & Fittings, - 5 years straight-line
Computer equipment - 3 years straight-line
Motor vehicles - 4 years straight-line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. '

Hire purchase and leasing commltments

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to Statement of Financial Activities on a straight I|ne
basis over the period lease. .

STOCKS

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net reallsable value after making due aIIowance for
obsolete and slow-movmg stocks.

TAXATION

The Multi Academy Company is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragtaph 1 Schedule 6 of
the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets -the definition .of a charitable company for the UK

corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the Multi Academy Company is potentially exempt from the

taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3
or the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the
extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Any income generated from non-primary purpose trading by the. Multi Academy Company will be
subject to corporation tax. Current tax is recognised at the amount of tax payable using the tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. There is no tax

duei in the current financial year.

1.9

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recogniSed when the Multi Academy Company has an obligation at the reporting date
as a result of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the
obllgatlon can be estimated reliably. :

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within the interest payable and similar charges.

1.10 LIABILITIES

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past

- event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount

of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Multi
Academy Company anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced

payments for the goods or services it must provide.
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OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
{A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

“1.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Multi Academy Company only holds basic financial instruments as defined in AFRS 102. The
financial assets and financial liabilities of the Multi Academy Company and their measurement bases
are as follows: . ‘ .

Financial aSsets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are

measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 18. Taxation and social security are not-included in

the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial

liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
_ rather than cash or another financial instrument. .

' 1.12 PENSIONS

Retirement benefits to employees of the Multi Académy ComApany are provided by the Teachers'
Pension Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined
benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as'to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Multi Academy Company-in such a way that the
pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The
contributions are determined by the Government -Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using
a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying
assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution
scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Multi Academy Company in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are

~measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained
at least triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating
surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the
net defired benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the'scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognlsed gains
and losses. : .

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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1.

.Accounting policies (contir\ued)

1.13 FUND ACCOUNTING

_ Unrestricted income funds can be used in accordance withthe charitable objectives at the discretion
of the Directors. '

Restricted funds can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the objectives of the -Multi
Academy Company. Restrictions arise when specified by the donor or when funds are‘raised for
particular restricted purposes. Further explanatron of the nature and purpose of each fund is included
in the notes to the Frnan0|a| Statements .

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specif ic purpose.

. Restricted general funds comprlse all other restricted funds received wrth restrlctlons |mposed by the
funder/donor and mclude grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and_ losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGMENT

Estimates and, judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the :
circumstances. :

Critical accountlng estimates and assumptions:- ’ ;
The Multi Academy Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resultlng
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate:. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the

‘pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial

valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll' forward approach and a full
actuanal valuation would |mpact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

' Crltlcal areas of |udgment

The net realisable value of tangible fixed assets and the useful economic life of tanglble fixed assets are
subject to levels of judgment which could have a material impact on the annual deprecratlon charge to the
Financial Statements -
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3. Incdme from donations and capital grant$
A Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total - Total
" funds. funds funds - funds funds .
2023 2023 2023 2023 - 2022
' : £ A £ ‘ £ R T
DONATIONS g '
Transfer in of existihg : L , . :
academies into the MAC : - : - N - - (4,578,213) -
Transfer in on conversion to A : o _ 2 ‘ :
MAC Co . 66,556 (66,419) ° 99,970 100,107 -
_ Donations - 331,074 - 193,266 424,340 312,562
Capital Grants =~ ‘ - - 1,457,331 1,457,331 976,479 -
TOTAL2023 - . 397,630  (66,419) = 1,650,567 1,981,778 (3,289,172)
' TOTAL 2022 S 967,915  (5963634) 1,706,547  (3,289,172)

‘Page 38



-

OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)’

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

4. ' Funding f.orAthe‘ Multi Academy Company's charitable activities
Unrestricted ~ Restricted Total .  Total ..
funds funds funds - - funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ : £ £ £
DFE/ESFA GRANTS o , . ‘ . . ;
General Annual Grant o ‘_ + 24,904,118 ~ 24,904,118 19,728,582 ‘
Pupil Premium o ' - 1,104,453 1,104,453 733515
. Start up Grants ‘ - - - 125000
Universal Infant Free School Meals. .. = - 294,433 294,433 228,330
'Recovery Premium ' , - 183,356 183,356 92,560
Ratesreclaim . . . - 30,087 30,087 26,148
Schools Supplémentary Grant a R 739,089 - 739,089 246,913 .
PE & Sports grant . C .- - 149,400 149,400 © 183,045
| Teacher'sA Pay and Pension Grant - 82,320 82,320 116,043
Trust Capacity Funding o - 91,178 91,178 100,000
Summer School - j S - - 80,835
School led tutoring | , , ~ - 133272 133,272 ?0,427
Mainstream Schools Additional Grant ) . - ', ' 369,195 ‘369,195 -
Mass testing. and vaccination C - - : - 47,051
16-19 Funding ' - 2,003,956 2,003,956 1,900,267
Others , : S - 124794 124794, 40019

- : - 30,209,651 - 30,209,651 2-3.728,'735
OTHER GOVERNMENT GRANTS

High Needs -SEN . - 609,840 609,840 | 472,274

’ Other LA ' : . B - 282,805 282,805 - 14,319
 Early years funding S - 127,209 127,209 -
Other government grants o - 66,321 66,321 47,885

1,086,175 1,086,175 "534,478

SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES . ‘ 182,771 o 500 183,271 780,609
OTHER FUNDING . -~ i _ . - .
Catering o . 577,788 - 577,788 494,259
Sale of Uniform » . 2,227 - $ 2,227 . 3,696
Clubs and Music . ' 186,643 , .- 186,643 -82,630
Supply teacher insurance o : - 155,430 155,430 - 48,374
‘ 766,658 155430 922,088 . 628,959
TOTAL 2023 - S 949429 31451756 32,401,185 25672781
TOTAL 2022 : o 1,350,843 24,321,938 25,672,781
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~ TOTAL 2022 AS RESTATED _

20,271,484

4,142,771
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3,834,130

28,248,385

5. - Income from other t'radling activities
Unrestricted Total Total
"~ funds. - funds funds
- 2023 2023 2022
£ £ B >
Lettings 169,922. -169,922 112,534 |
- Trips - 526,707 © 526,707 309,790
696,629 . 696,629 - 422,324
TOTAL 2022 422,324 422,324
6. Investment income
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
Investment income 6,858 6,858 -
7. Expenditure
: S | As restated
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
- 2023 - 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Education: . A ‘ . ,
‘Direct costs 19,145,413 2,297,985 1,789,422 23,232,820 19,646,116 -
Allocated support costs 6,194,446 - 2,724,412 : 3,277,922 12,196,780 8,602,269
25,339,859 ' 5,022,397 5,067,344 4,35,429,600 28,248,385



(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

* OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY

8. Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities -

SumAmaryvby fund type

. Education
TOTA.L 2022 AS RESTATED

9. Analysis of expenditure by activities

Education

TOTAL 2022 AS RESTATED

N

As restated
Total

2022

£

-28,248,385

As restated |

Total -

funds
2022
£

28,248,385 -

Unrestricted  Restricted

‘funds ~ funds Total

2023 2023 2023

£ £ £

1,454,557 3;3}975,043 35,429,600
1;154;544 : 27,093;841 28,248,385 ‘

. Activities :

undertaken - Support- Total

directly costs funds

2023 2023 ‘2023

£ £ £

23,232,820. 12,196,780 35,429,600

28,248,385

19,646,116
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9." Analysis of expentditure‘by activities (continued)

-Analysis of direct costs

Pension finance costs
Staff costs '
Depreciation
Educational supplies
" Other costs
Agency staff
Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equment
- Technology costs S
Educational consultancy

Page 42

- Total
Education. funds “funds
2023 12023 2022
£ £ £
174,014 174,014 141,850
18,163,178 18,163,178 15,735,481
1,203,483 1,203,483 1,241,566
1,722,900 1,722,900 1,301,731
102,266 102,266 133,627
982,235 - 982,235 ?421,433
- 64,531 164,531 117,585
526,734 526,734 . 351,466
252,047 252,047 - 174,475
41,432 41,432 26,902

Total

‘ As reétated .

23,232,820

. 23,232,820

19,646,116 -



OUR LADY OF THE MAGNIFICAT MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

9. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued') ‘

Analysis of support costs o B - . , .

TotaT Total

Educationl funds funds
2023 2023 . 2022
£ . 3 £

Pension finance costs ' 84986 - 84,986 124,150
Staff costs - 6,051,057 6,051,057 3,978,670
Depreciation . C ' 126,271 126,271 71,305
Other costs : , : o - -153,415 153,415 . 76,259
" Agency staff : ‘ 143,389 . 143,389 135,900
Recruitment and support : 474,237 474,237 297,517
_Maintenance of premises and equipment . ’ ~ 1,622,810 1,522,810 937,342
Cleaning - o o ’ 227,484 227,484 233747
Rent and rates S 341,124 341,124 369,685
Energy costs o 632,994 . 632,994 " 425,589
Insurance _ ' . 140,460 140,460 84,252

Security and transport o : - 67,298 67,298 ‘ -

Catering : . ' - ©1,114,977 1,114,977 - 526,613
Technology costs - A A ' 240,479 240,479 569,602
" Office overheads ' 576,737 576,737 561,544
Professional fees - ‘ o : 169,535 . 169,535 +74,032
"Legal Fees , - 69,259 ~.69,259 - 36,682

‘Bank interest and charges , ‘ ' 8815 8815 4,168 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets : S . '_ . 14,993
Governance costs ‘ ' ' 51,453 51,453 80,219

12,196,780 12,196,780 8,602,269
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10.

1.

Net in(:omel(expendifure) '

: Nét.income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

' As restated -

2023 2022
- £ £
Opérating Iease're'ntals ' , ) T o ‘ 96,720 100,045
Depreciation of t'ahgible fixed assets . . ‘ o . 2,145,764 1,312,870
; Loss on disposal of fixed assets : : : ' ‘ - 14,993
Fees paid to auditors for:’ ‘ ‘
-audit 4 o , 35,590 31,700
- other services 4 _ 2,620 * 3,550
Staff A ' A 4 : S
a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were as foITows:
2023 2022
S ‘ £ £
Wages and salaries . . 18,147,177 14,444776, -
Social security costs ' ' : 1,713,623 1,229,166

Pension costs ) ' A 4,353,435 4,040,209

24,214,235 19,714,151

" 'Supply teacher costs 1,125,624 557,333

25,339,859 20,271,484

b Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Multi Academy Company during the year was as
follows:

2023. 2022

No. No.
Teachers - - . - S 325 249
Support Staff = o L o . 398 - 316

o 723 565
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11. . Staff (continued)
b. Staff numbers (continued)
The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

2023 - - 2022

/
, A . No. . ‘No.
Teachers = . o ‘ © . 266 226
Support Staff X ' , : 211 187

. 477 © 413
c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee beneflts (excluding employer penslon costs) exceeded )

£60,000 was:
2023 2022
No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 < : | . 8 12
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 j RS ' 11 2
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 o - 4 1
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 - , S : 3 3
In the band £130,001 - £140,000 - o ‘ - 1

In the band £140,001 - £150,000 .. ‘ A : » 1, -

- d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Multi Academy ‘Company comprise the Directors and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions and national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the Multi Academy Company was £2, 322 424 (2022 £1,573,083).

\
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12. Central services
The Multi Academy Company has pn;ovided the following central servicés to its academies during the year:

IT support services
Financial services"
Legal services ‘ A
Education support services o o ' ’
HR support services ' '
Data Protection Officer
Chief Accounting Officer
Clerking services .
Estate and premises support services
1

The Multi Academy Company charges for these seNices on the foIIowi'ng basis:

A flat rate of 5% of the Individual Academy's GAG mcome for the year (2022: 5%) plus any spemf ic
additional charges

The actual‘amounts charged during the year were as follows: '

2023 2022
St Augustine‘s Catholic High Scho@l . : 278,513 447,796
St Bede's Catholic Middle School C 4 : "~ 158,780 - 167,648
Our Lady of Mount Carmel Catholic First School o ) 61,629 84,145
St Peter's Catholic First School : : ' ) 59,560 . 70,736
St Thomas More Cathalic First School 4 - 42,767 45,498
' Trinify Catholic School . o ' . 158,972° ' 174,218
St Benedict's Catholic High School - ’ ' A 169,888 - 220,902
St Gregory's Catholic Primary School : ' o 43,537 . 52,183
St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Evesham) _ ' 34,885 44,332
St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Henley) ‘ A 29,830 34,267
Our Lady's Catholic Primary Schdol ' ' 24,272 30,014
St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Broadway) o : - 22,130 27,395
Our Lady and St Theresa’s Catholic Primary School : 36,682 -
St Augustine’s Catholic Primary School , 39,878 -
St Marie's Catholic Primary School & Nursery : ' 82,226 - -
English Martyrs’ Catholic Primary School - ‘ 45,945 -
St Marys Catholic Primary School, Studley - A 47,341 -
TOTAL T ' C ‘ 1,336,835 1,399,134
) :
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13,

14,

15.

Directors’ remuneration and expenses
During the year, no Directors received any remuneration or other benefits (2022 - £NIL). -

During the year ended 31 August 2023, expenses totalling £396 were reimbursed or baid directly to 3

.. Directors (2022 - £245 to 2 Directors).

.Directors' and Oﬁ"cers msurance

The Multi Academy Company has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement
(RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme
protects Directors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst
on MAC business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Directors and

~ offi icers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membershlp

Tangible fixed assets .

. Furniture . .
. Site . ~and  Computer Motor
Improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
o S ] £ £ £
COST OR VALUATION )
At 1 September 2022 (as : : ‘ . : o
" restated) . 2,093,430 1,472,418 . 998,253 ‘ - - 4,564,101
Additions 620,036 826,865 99,946 - 11,200 1,558,047
Acquired on conversion - . - © 99,970 . - . 99,970
At 31 August 2023 ' 2,713,466 . 2,299,283 1,198,169 ) 11,200 6,222,118 '
- DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2022 (as '
- restated) : , 1,075,956 976,915 841,091 - 2,893,962
Charge for the year 955,251 . 220,967 151,454 2,092 1,329,764 -
At 31 August 2023 2,031,207 1,197,882 992,545 2,092 4,223,726
" NET BOOK VALUE -
At 31 'August 2023 682,259 1,101,401 . 205,624 9,108 1,998,392
At 31 August 2022 (as | 1,017,474 495,503 157,162 ; 1,670,139
restated) ' : : : : . -

The Multi Academy Company occupies land and building under the control of the Diocese. These assets
do not appear on the fixed asset reglster instead a notional payment is made in respect of the use of
these assets along with an accompanymg donation from the diocese.
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16. Stocks
2023 2022
S | £ £
Goods for resale - , _ S 4372 -
17. Debtors ' Y
2023 2022
£ £
Trade debtors e SR o 275677 88694
Prepayments and accrued income - ’ " ! 661,421 .- 976,667 .

VAT recoverable - _ ' S 123,714 110,028

-1,060,812 . 1,175,389

18. Creditors: Amounts failing due within one year.

2023 - 2022.
. L N R
Trade creditors -+ o ) 209,319 419,054
Other taxation and social security - S : : 399,799 316,964
Pension fund loan payable . R e i ) 449,515 333,640
Other creditors ' : i S ‘ 10,643 58,772 .

Accruals and deferred income - ) o ' -~ 1,938,654 1,188,082

3,007,930 2,316,512

2023 2022
- Deferred income at 1 September 2022 - | s : 191,205 277,718 ‘
Resources deferred during the year - . 489,979 191,205

Amounts released from previous periods L (191,205) . (277,71_/8)

. 489,979 191,205

19, Pnoryearadjustments ~

There has been a prior year restatement in relatlon to the St Bedes Sports Hall, due to the MAC:

occupying the land and buildings under the control of the Diocese. The Sports Hall had been incorrectly
.. classified and leasehold land and building |mprovements and was therefore omutted from the transfer in

2021to the Diocese. ! :
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20. - Statement of funds

As restated -

, - Balance at 1 A _ Balance at
September . - - Transfers: Gains/ 31 August
2022  Income Expenditure infout {Losses) . 2023
_ £ : £ £ £ £ £
UNRESTRICTED - . '
. 'FUNDS » : ' .
~ General funds . 2,196,583 2,050,546 - (1,454,557)’ ' - - 2,792,572
RESTRICTED
GENERAL
FUNDS .
General-Annual oo S ‘ -0 : - } ' :
~ Grant © . 131,538 . 27,566,742 (27,181,140)  (168,473) - 348,667
StartUp Grants = - 46,548 - . - - (46,548) - - L
Pupil Premium ©o- 1,104,453  (1,104,453) - - -
UIFSM . e 294,433 (294,433) : - - -
PE & Sports’ - ‘ . ' _
Grant 50,639 . 149,400  (200,039) = = - - _ -
Teachers Pay : :
-and Pension - ' o v
grant - - - 82,320 (82;320)° - - - -
LA SEN - S . . 609,840 (609,840) : - - -
Other DfE , . . '
revenue grants - 1,668,789  (1,558,789) - - -
Other revenue ' : : : A
grants - .. 66,921 (36,021) - - - 30,900
Other Restricted - .- 647,439 (647,439) - - - ©o-

Pension reserve  (5,345,000) (695,000) (298;000)‘

3,491,000  (2,847,000)

(5,116,275) 31,385,337 (32,059,022)  (168,473)

3,491,000  (2,467,433)
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20.

‘ Staternent of funds (continued)

As restated

Balance at 1 - o : ' ’ - Balance at

September . Transfers " Gains/ 31 August

2022 -Income Expenditure . in/out (Losses) 2023

£ S 3 £ £ £ £

RESTRICTED s o '

FIXED ASSET -

FUNDS : . _ | ‘
DFC ' 1,354,096 144,533 . (548,245) - - 950384
GAG 394,723 - - (144,402) 168,473 - 418,794
Other capital ~ ' S : :

grants 39,529 - 309,268 (127,601) e - 221,196
" Conversion 122,113 177,489 ' {109,604) : - - 189,998
.SCA 515,456 - 1,003,530 (555,692) - ' - 963,294
S106 214,730 15,747  (230,477) - - -
Sale of Priest ‘ o ' - o

House 200,000 - - (200,000) . - - ‘ -

2,840,647 1,650,567  (1,916,021) 168,473 Co- : 2,743,666
TOTAL FUNDS = . (79,045) 35,086,4,50 (35;‘429,600) - - 3,491,000 . ‘ 3,068,805

Th'e specific purposes for which the funds are to be appliedare as follows:

General Annual Grant

The General Annual Grant is the delegated fund received from the ESFA. The GAG is made up of several . °

funding factors. The main factor is.based on student numbers taken from census data, Basic entitlement
Age Weighted Pupil Unit. The remaining factors are based on student specific data again taken from
census data, Deprivation, Looked After Children, Prior Attainment, English as an additional language, and
Mobility. Additional funding factor is used for Sparsity and each school receives a Lump Sum depending
on sector, primary or secondary. Funding for the Sixth form programme is received via GAG based on-
census data received. Sixth form funding is calculated using a small number of factors such banding for
hours a student receives. The MAC is not subject to a I|m|t on GAG carry forward.

-DfE/EFA capital grants

Devolved Formula -Capital and Conditions Improvement Fund funding can be used for |mprovements
to buildings and other facilities, including ICT, or capital repalrs/refurblshment and minor works. All
schools within- the Multi Academy Company who have been in receipt of the fund have used it to make-

_improvements to their IT provusron upgrade their fixtures and ﬁttlngs or undertaken minor building

worksllmprovements

The Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) ‘ : -
The Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) supports projects to address condition issues and schools and -
colleges that need to expand their existing provision.

Pension reserve

. The Pension Reserve relates to the Multi Academy Companys share of the Local Government Pension
Scheme deficit. . '
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20.

-need to expand thelr eX|st|ng provision and replace CIF funding going forward.

Statement of funds (coniinued) .

Capltal expendlture from GAG .

Where tangible fixed assets are acquired by the Academies, the Academies use thelr Developed Formula
Capital income. Once these funds are exhausted and the Academies still require Tangible Fixed Assets,
funds are transferred from the General Annual Grant to cover the cost of these assets required.

- Tangible Fixed Assets acquired on Conversron to Academles .

At conversion all schools had their fixed assets transferred to the new Multi Academy Company. These:
transfers were made from the Archdiocese of Birmingham or Worcestershlre County CounC|I The fund is
charged W|th depreciation of the assets in each period: . -

16-19 Bursary

St Augustine's Catholic High School St Benedict's Catholic High School and Tnmty Catholic School all run
successful sixth forms. Eligible Students are able to apply for a grant to support their studies. The grant .
is known as the 16-19 bursary, and is provided to the Multi Academy Company to distribute to eligible
pupils at its dlscretlon This is not recognised as income or expendlture of the Multl Academy Company

SCA . : :
School Condition Allocation supports projects to address condition |ssues and schools and colleges that

’

S106
St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Broadway) is due to recelve fundmg in relatlon to a building prolect
upon completion. )

Sale of Priest House

St Mary's Catholic’ Primary School (Broadway) had a Priests House 6n site, which has since been
transferred to the Diocese and subsequently sold, upon completion of building works the MAC received
£200,000 for the work completed in relatlon to the sale of the house which has to be spent on buﬂdmg

: works in Broadway
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20. ° Statement of funds (continued)

: Comparative information in respect of the_preceding year is as follows: -

As restatea

As restated -

£

‘Balance at . Balance at
1 September . As restated Transfers Gair)s/ 31 August
: 2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
. S £ - £ £ B :
UNRESTRICTED A
FUNDS . . ‘
. General funds 717105 2,741,082 -~ (885,798) (375,806) - © 2,196,583
~ RESTRICTED
GENERAL
FUNDS N .
~ Teaching School 208 - (208) - - -
General Annual ' '
‘Grant © 411,309 21,749,215 (22,028,986) - - 131,538
Start Up Grants ' - 125,000 . (78.,452) - - © 46,548
. Pupil Premium s - 733,615 . '(733,515) - - -
UIFSM : - 228,330 (228,330) - - -
PE & Sports : ' : .
Grant - . 183,045 (132,406) - - 50,639
Teachers Pay ' '
-and Pension A . S
~ grant o - 116,043 (116,043) - - -
LA SEN , - 472,274 (472,274) - - -
SSG . - 246,913  (246,913) - - -
Other DfE : T
_ revenue grants - . 476,481 (476,481) - - -
Other revenue - . '
‘grants ' - 62,204 (62,204) - - -
Other Restricted - ' 49,284 ' (49,284) - - - -
Pension reserve (9,'255,000)_ (6,084,000) (1,1'11,000) _' - 11,105,000, (_5,345,000)
1(8,843,483) 18,358,304 (25,736,096) - 11,105,000 ~(5;11'6,27.5)
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20. Staterpent of funds (continued)

RESTRICTED
FIXED ASSET
FUNDS

DFC

GAG

Other capital
grants ’

Conversion
SCA "~ . B
S106

Sale of Priest
House

CIF

TOTAL

RESTRICTED

FUNDS -

TOTAL FUNDS

As restated

As restated
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Balance at : Balance at
1 September As restated Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure’ infout (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,446,836 - 511,088 '(796,538) 192,710 ) - 1,354,096
665,444 - (270,721) - - 394,723
66640 - - (27,111) - - 39,529
205,865 - (83,752) - - 122,113
- 868,983 (353,527) - - 515,456.
- 131,582 - 83,148 - 1214,730
- 200,000 - - - 200,000

- - (5,1086) (94,842) 99,948 - -
2,384,785 1,706,547  .(1,626,491) 375,806 - 2,840,647
(6,458,698) 20,064,851 (27,362,587) 375,806 - 11,105,000 ‘(2,27.5.628)
© (5,741,593) 22,805,933 (28,248,385) - . 11,105,000 - (79,045)
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20.

Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy
Fuhd balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

: As restated
2023 . 2022

’ _ £ £
St Augustine’s Catholic High Schoo! ' 126,521 104,878
St Bede's Catholic Middle School ' 75686 - 61,725 .
Our Lady of Mount Carmel Catholic First School ' 31,132 - -
St Peter's Catholic First School : 30,438 : 24,"094
St Thomas More Catholic First School . C ' 18;1 84 " 17,684
Trinity Catholic School ) IS 84,899 65,388
St Benedict's Catholic High Schoo! - o 82,555 72,141
St Gregory's Catholic Primary School o ‘ ' ' 15,941 16,891
St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Evesham) 11,043 14,544
.St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Henle)}) o 14,526 11,656
Our Lady's Catholic Primary School ‘ R (25,947) 10,054
St Mary's Catholic Primary Schoal (Broadway) ' (252,131A) (229,890)
Our Lady.and St Theresa's Catholic Primary School : : 19,014 -
St Augustine’s Catholic Primary School . ' 19,913 s
St Marie's Catholic Primary School & Nursery 4 44,436 -
English Martyrs' Catholic Primary School, o ' 22,413 -
St Marys Catholic Primary School, Studley . 23,947 A -
Central Services ‘ : . . ' 2,829,569 2,256,143
Total before fixed asset funds and_p'e.nsion reserve . 3,172,139 2,425,308
Restricted fixed asset fund ' S 2,743,666 2,840,647
Pension reserve - ' (2,847,000). ' (5,345,000)
TOTAL - - o 3,068,805  (79,045):

The folloWing academies are carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit

, . ' £
St Mary's Catholic Primary School (Broadway) - o y | T (252,131)

Our Lédy's Catholic Primary School . : . oy (25,947)

St Mary's Catholic Primary School in Broadway and Our Lady’s Catholic Primary School in Alcester both

. are small half form entry schools with low numbers on roll. Our Lady's Catholic Primary School has also
" struggled with pupil numbers since its Ofsted judgement of Requires Improvement in February 2020.-
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20.

Statement of funds (continued)

"~ The Multi Academy Cpmpany is taking the following action to return the academies to su'rplué:

St Mary's in Broadway now works very closely with St Mary's Evesham sharing staff, best practice and an
Executive Headteacher. The Multi Academy Company has invested in two new purpose-built classrooms
which should help to attract and increase pupil numbers. This investment was supported with funding
from Section 106 income from Worcestershire County Council and the Diocese of Blrmlngham Education
service. This is part of the plan to make the school financially viable.

~ Our Lady’s Catholic Primary's Local Governing Body was replaced by a School lmprovément Board and a

new Headteacher has been appointed from 1st September 2023 as the Multi Academy Company

“supports it movmg forwards

Total cost analysns by academy.

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching - Other , Other costs

- and support ‘support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2023 2022
£ £ £ ' £ £ £
St Augustine's
Catholic High '
School 3,668,646 © 975,506 376,712 . 869,568 5,890,432 5,105,994
St Bede's ' ' ‘ - o
Catholic Middle o :
~ School 2,353,235 - 402,993° 65,968 - 625,306 3,447,502 3,061,388
Our Lady of ‘ ‘
Mount Carmel .
Catholic First . : ‘ B ' .
School 884,895 - 184,107 57,254 266,611 1,392,867 1,210,635
St Peter's ' ' '
Catholic First : : , o
School .. 882,741 227,454 62,997 . 224,145 1,397,337 1,272,646
St Thomas More o -
Catholic First - : -
School 541,927 220,274 80,023 236,072 1,078,296 1,047,345
Trinity Catholic . e _ :
School - 2,256,081 439,581 421,176 . 956,206 4,073,044 3,625,930
St Benedict's ' ' ' ’
Catholic High o ' '
. School _ 2,425,682 588,795 . 194,280 - 638,681 3,847,438 3,442,516
St Gregory's '
_Catholic S ' A S
Primary School 573,295 136,691 . 62,510 - 299,162 - 1,071,658 - 1,012,817 -~
" StMary's )
Catholic
Primary School . ‘ . ‘
(Evesham) 504,339 151,543 38,001 147914 = . 841,797 829,813
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20. Statement of fuﬁds (continued)

Teaching Other : Other costs - e -
and support support Educational excluding =~ + Total ~ Total.
staff costs = staff costs supplies depreciation 2023 2022
£ £ £ S 3 £ ' £

StMary's = A : o
Catholic ' ' '
Primary School . ' ' ‘
(Henley) 419,732 - 65409 15,156 161,679 . 661,976 657,988

Our Lady's
Catholic . - S . ‘
Primary School 357,059 122,134 47,561 214,190 740,944 641,562
'St Mary's .
Catholic

Primary School . ' ‘ : ‘
(Broadway) =~ " 320,072 99,420 18,273 - 124630 . 562,395 644,966

Our Lady and St.
" Theresa's
Catholic C .
Primary School 385,392 479,856 26,379 . 171,102 762,829 -

St Augustine’s
Catholic , ‘ . - ' v
~ Primary School 546,870 249,847 .- 50,495 196,708 1,043,920 -
~ St Marie's ‘ '
Catholic

Primary School ~ _ : ‘
& Nursery . 1,081,915 481,406 79,962 345,383 1,988,666 -

English Martyrs’
Catholic - : : ) : -
‘Primary School 533,424 323,075 47,341 190,963 1,094,803 -

St Marys
Catholic
Primary .
School, : . , _ : , ‘
Studley - 574,843 317,052, . 68,850 219,361 1,180,106 -

Central Services 835265 1,029,203 9,962 1,149,406 3,023,836 4,381,914'

MULTI /

ACADEMY ; — ~ ' ; ;
COMPANY 19,145,413 - 6,194,446 1,722,900 7,037,087 34,099,846 - 26,935,514

~

~
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21.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

. ~ Restricted L
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset: Total
funds funds funds . funds

2023 2023 2023 2023 -
- £ £

£ B

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets _
Creditors due within one year

Provisions for liabilities and charges

TOTAL T

- .- 1998392 1998392 '
2,792,572 2,499,402  1,633,369. 6,925,343
- (2,119,835) . (888,095) (3,007,930)

- (2,847,000) - - (2,847,000)

©. 2,792,572 (2,467,433) 2,743,666 3,068,805 .

Ahalysis of net assets between funds - prior year

As ‘resfated

S Restricted - As restated
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds ~funds funds _funds
2022 2022 . 2022 - 2022
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets _, - - 1,670,139 1,670,139,
Current assets S - 2,196,583 2,348,596 1,367,149 5,912,328
Creditors due within one year - o - (2,119,871) " (196,641) +(2,316,512)
'Provisions for liabilities and charges . ' < .. (5,345,000) . . - (5,345,000)
 TOTAL AS RESTATED : 2,196,583  (5,116,275) 2,840,647 (79,045)
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 22. Reconciliation of net exbenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)

ADJUSTMENTS FOR:
Oepreciation” - : - >
Capital grants from DfE and other capltal income
Defined benefit. pension scheme obligation inherited
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
(Increase)/decrease in stocks
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
. ‘Increase in creditors
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Donated fixed assets
Funds inherited on transfer
Net assets inherited on transfer

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

23. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible ﬁxed‘asséts
Capital grants from DfE Group

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTI\AIITIES'

24. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
)
- Cash in hand and at bank

» TQTAL~CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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As restated

2023 2022
£ £
(343,150)  (5,442,452)
1,329,764 1,312,870
(1,457,331)  (110,265) -
695,000 6,084,000
298,000 1,111,000
(4,372) -
114,577 (523,644)
665,390 949,698
- 126,973
1(99,970)  (398,485)
(628,581) - (1,107,301)
- 162,535
569,327 2,164,929
2023 2022
. £ £
. (1,532,019)  (371,456)
- 1,457,331 110,265
(74,688) . (261,191)
2023 2022
£ . £
5,860,159. 4,736,939

5,860,159

- 4,736,939
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25, '

26.

Analeis of changes in net debt

A At1 L
September - ' At 31 ,
2022 Cash flows August 2023 -
‘ . £ B 3
Cash at bank'an'd inhand. . ' o _ " 4,736,939 " 1,123,220 5,860,159

Debt due within 1 year o T ' (333,640) (115,875) (449,515)

4,403,299 1,007,345 5410644

Conversion to.an academy trust

On 1st September 2022 Engllsh Martyrs’ Cathollc Prlmary School converted to academy. trust status
under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Our
Lady of the Magnificat Muilti Academy Company from. Warwickshire County Councul for £NIL
consideration. . ) . .

The transfer has been -accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and A
liabilities. transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet under the

“appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of

financial activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from.local authority on .

COHVEI’SIOH

The following table sets out the fair values of the |dent|f able assets -and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recogn|t|on in the Statement of fi nancial activities. ‘

~

o ' . - ' Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset .  Total
funds’ funds funds . funds-
S £ ' £ B 3 £
. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS g : . ‘
Other tangible fixed assets A - - -~ 19,090 ' 19,090
CURRENT ASSETS ) ' ‘ c
Cash - representing budget surplus | : '
on LA funds - 160,156 . - - - . 160,156
Cash- - representing budget surplus S ' ‘ ,
on.other school funds . 6,785 . - - . - 6,785
Defined benefit pension scheme liability - - (167,000) - (167,000)
‘NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) ' S : 6,785 - (6,844) 19,090 . 19,031
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- . 26.

Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

On 1st September 2022 St Augustine’s Catholic anary School converted to academy trust status under :
the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Our Lady of
the Magnificat Multi Academy Company from Warwickshire County Council for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets-and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet under the

conversion.

. “appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of
~ financial activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from Iocal authority on

The foIIowmg table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and Ilabllltles transferred and an
analysis of their recognltlon in the Statement of fi nancual actlvmes : .

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds - funds funds
c : £ £ £ £
- TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS :
Other tangible fixed assets - ' ‘- - 10,840 10,840
'CURRENT ASSETS ' ' '
~ Cash - representing budget surplus on . .
LA funds - 114,646 - 114,646
Cash - representing budget surplus on ' ' :
other school funds . 16,977 - , - 16,977
Defined benefit pension scheme Iiability - (73,000) . - (73,000) -
NET ASSETS . - ) ' ‘ ' 16,977 41,646 10,840 69,463
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26.

- conversion.

Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

" On 1st September 2022 Our Lady and St Theresa's Catholic anary School converted to academy trust

status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to
Our Lady of the Magnlf icat Multi Academy Company from Warwickshire County Councrl for £NIL
consrderatlon , )

The transfer has been acco'unted_for as a combination: that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet under the

"appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of

financial activities as Income from Donations and- Capltal Grants - transfer from local authority on

/

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and |IabI|ItIeS transferred and an

_ anaIyS|s of their recognltron in the Statement of financial actrvmes

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total -
‘ funds funds funds . funds
I £ £ £ S X
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 4 .
Other tangible fixed assets R : - 14270 . - 14270
"CURRENT ASSETS _ ' ' : -
Cash - representing budget surplus on - . : -
. LA funds - o - 129,763 - - 129,763
Cash - representing budget surplus on ) ’ : . : -
other school funds : . . 8,237 - - ) - 8,237 .
Defined benefit pension scheme liability’ s ' (59,000) - (59,000)
" NET ASSETS : | | . 8237 70763 . 14270 93,270
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. 26.

' Conversmn to an academy trust (continued)

On 1st September 2022 St Marys Catholic. anary School converted to academy trust status under the
Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Our Lady of the

Magnificat Multi Academy Company from Warwickshire County Council for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and

liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet under the -
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of
financial activities as Income. from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authorlty on

conversion.

The foIIowmg table sets: out the fair values of the identifi able assets and Ilabllltles transferred and anv

analysis of their recognition in the Statement of fi nancnal actlvmes
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. Restricted :
: ) Unrestricted- Restrlcted fixed asset Total
' funds - funds funds funds
' : B £ £ £
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS ‘ )
Other tangible fixed assets - - - 28290 - 28,290
CURRENT ASSETS |
' Cash - representmg budget surplus on p . o :
LAfunds . : - 108,831 . - 108,831
Cash - representing budget surplus on o : '
other school funds ) " 18,148 i - ' - 18,148
. Defined benefit pension scheme IIabiIity B ~ (113,000) - -+ {113,000)
'NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 18,148 (4169) - 28,200 42,269
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26.

27.

Conversion to an academy trust (continuéd)

On 1st September 2022 St Marie’s Catholic Primary School & Nursery converted to academy trust status
under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Our
Lady of the Magnificat Multi Academy Company from Warwickshire County Council for £NIL
consideration. ‘ '

‘The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and

liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and. recognised in the Balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of

financial activities as Income from Donatlons and Capital Grants - transfer from Iocal authorlty on

conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an

analysis of their recognmon in the Statement of financial activities.

_ : Restricted :
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
‘ funds  funds funds “funds
. ' £ £ . £ £
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS . : :
Other tangible fixed assets . - - 27480 27,480
" CURRENT ASSETS : o
Cash - representlng budget surplus on ‘ T ,
LA funds , o - 115,185 - 115,185
Cash - representing budget surplus on : . ' ‘ ' o
other.school funds 16,409 - - 16,409
Defined benefit pension scheme liability ' - (283,000) - - (283,000)
NET ASSETSI(LIABILITIES). o ' 16,409 (167,815) 27,480 (123.‘925)
. —_— ———— = 1
Capital commitments
2023 2022
£ £
CONTRACTED FOR BUT NOT PROVIDED IN THESE FINANCIAL :
STATEMENTS , ’ A o
Repairs, maintenance or enhancements ' ‘ L . 159,089 132,367
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28.

Pension commitments

The Multi Academy Company's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers'
Pension-Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Worcestershire County Council &
Warwickshire County Council Pension Funds. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuanal valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £449,515 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 £333 640)
and are included within creditors. .

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Thé Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, cbntributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time.teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions; as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension ‘
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. 4 4

"Valuation of the Teachers Pension Scheme

- The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS

in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2020. The vaiuation report was published by the Department for Education on 26 October 2023.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are;

e . employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensmnable pay (|nclud|ng a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estlmated cost of future benef its)-for

service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,000 million, giving a
notional past service. deficit of £39,800 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
" SCAPE rate is 1.7% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%. '

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024 and effective until 31 March 2027.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1 917,215 (2022 - £2,157,553)..

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https:/Awww teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Multi Academy Company has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme The Multi Academy Company has set out above the information available on the
scheme
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28.

Pension commitments (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme ' ' ’

The LGPS is a funded' defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £1,677,000 (2022
- £1,037,880), of which empleyers contributions totaled £1,363,000 (2022 - £756,972) and employees'
contributions totaled £ 314,000 (2022 - £280,908). The agreed contribution rates. for future years are 20.9
per cent for employers and bétween 5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees

As descrlbed the LGPS obllgatlon relates to the employees of the Multi Academy Company, who were the
employees transferred as part-of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative serwce at both the predecessor school and the
Multi Academy Company at the balance sheet date. .

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education toa guat'an'tee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2023 2022

, A % ‘ % -

Rate of increase in salaries o ' : . 4.06 h 4.03
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation ' . ' 2.94 - 3.01
Discount rate for scheme liabilities ' - 522 ‘ 4.27

Inflation assumption (CPI) R . 3.01 . 297

The current mortality assumptlons include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectatuons on retlrement age 65 are;

2023 2022

~ Years Years

Retiring today ‘ . , ,
Males . - 21.2 21.98
Females S 244 24.44
Retiring in 20 years : : ~ )
Males’ . : . 220 23.23

Females : : A N e 25.3 26.31
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28. Pension commitments (continued) 4

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
‘Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease .
CPI rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

Share of scheme assefs

The Multi Academy Company's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Other bonds

Property

Cash and-other liquid assets
Other . o

TOTAL MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS .

The actual return on schemé assets was £207,891 (2022 - £-376,000).

Restated

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income .

" Interest cost.
Administrative expenses

TOTAL AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
ACTIVITIES -

v ‘ : Page 66

2023 2022

£000 £000-

(371) (381)

375 385

- 554 500

(551) (497)

355 363

(352) (359)

At31 At31 Augusf

August 2023 2022

£ £

9,489,800 - 7,890,400

2,246,130 629,070

1,641,390 1,818,020

177,680 604,250

" 990,000 896,260
14,545,000 = 11,838,000 *

2023 . 2022

' £ - £
1,402,000 2,014,000 -
- (32,000) -

607,000 183,000

(866,000) (449,000)

9,000 9,000

1,152,000

1,725,000
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28.

| Changes in the present value of the deﬁne’d benefit obligations were as follows:

Pension commitments (continued) B . ' -

2023 . 2022

£ £

"~ At 1 September : _ e ' 4 17,183,000 15,930,000
Conversion of academy trusts - .- - L ' 2,611,000 10,510,000
Current service cost ' . : . o 1,‘402,000 2,014,000
Interest cost ‘ ‘ : ' _ 866,000 449,000
Employee contributions o , ' 314,000 230,000
Actuarial gains' : S (4,159,000) (11,673,000)
Benefits paid A . ‘ B ‘ (248,000)  (309,000)
Past service costs . . : o - - 32,000
AT 31 AUGUST ' S S 17,969,000 17,183,000

Changes in the fair value of the Multi Academy Company's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2023 - 2022

_ . A £ £
At1 September - ' S : 11,838,000 6,675,000
Conversion of academy trusts ' ‘ . 1,916,000 4,426,000

. Interest income - . 616,000 192,000 .- .
. Actuarial losses ‘ o (604,000) (568,000)
Employer contributions . 1,363,000 1,201,000
Employee contributions o - -314,000 230,000
Benefits paid - ‘ 4 - (248,000) (309,000)
Adnministration expenses ‘ : o ‘ -(9,000) (9,000)

Derecognition of pension surplus - - - ' ' (64,000) -

AT 31 AUGUST : 15,122,000 11,838,000

The Multi Academy Company has an unrecognised surplus of £64 000 (2022 - £ -) in respect of its
defined benefit pension scheme :as it does not expect to recover the plan surplus either through reduced
contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan
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29. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the Multi Academy Company had commitments to 'rrqake future minimum lease -
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: - L :

. - 2023 2022
. ‘ £ £
. Not later than 1 year - : SR ~ 90,039 61,239

‘Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years .- 110,839 0 - 17,513

200878 . 78752

30. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required; not exceeding £NIL for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.. -
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31. Related party. iransactions

Owing to the nature of the Multi Academy Company and the composmon of the-Board of Directors belng
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organlsatlons ’
- in which the Directors have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in -
accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April. 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Multi
* Academy Company's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
- related party transactlons .

Services Owed at31.  Services Due at 31

purchased August 2023 sold August 2023

‘ , , : R ' £ S X : £

Archdiocese of Birmirigham ) - 65,185 - - 201,200 600
Bishop Challoner Catholic College * ‘ 11700 - 1,500 ' -
St Joseph's Catholic Primary 7 .400 L - - -

St Mary's Catholic Primary o . - , - 12,000 4,000

St John Wall Catholic School -~ 27,615 -
St Patrick's Prlmary : : 120 - - -

94,490 - 214700 4,600 -

.J Fletcher, spouse of a Director, is employed by the Multi Academy Company. The appointment was
made in open competition and the related Director was not involved in- the decision-making process "
regarding the appointment which involved moving between schools within the Multi Academy Company.
The staff member is paid within the normal scale range for their role and receive no special treatment
because of their relatlonshap to the Director. This Dlrector resugned durlng the year. .

T Concannon was appointed as the Multi Academy Lead for: Modermn Forelgn Ianguages She is the_
spouse of a Headteacher within the Multi Academy Company :

| McNally was appointed as an Assistant Headteacher. He is the spouse- of the Assnstant Dlrector of
School Improvement within the Multi Academy Company. .

These were fair recruitment processes, and the staff members are remunerated within a pay scale
comparable to colleagues.
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